Department of HUMAN SERVICES

Comm. 28 (Rev. 02/21)

Medicaid for Non-MAGI-Related Persons

Contents

Introduction1
What is Medicaid?1
What is Non-MAGI-related Medicaid?1
Requirements
Do I qualify?2
What are the program requirements?
What requirements are there for medical facility
residents?10
Receiving Medical Care11
How do I get a medical card?11
Can I choose the medical provider?11
When will coverage begin? 12
What medical services are covered? 12
Application13
Application13How and where do I apply?13
How and where do I apply? 13
How and where do I apply?
How and where do I apply?
How and where do I apply? 13 Payment 14 Must I pay anything for medical care? 14 How are payments made? 14
How and where do I apply? 13 Payment 14 Must I pay anything for medical care? 14 How are payments made? 14 Can I still qualify if I have health insurance? 14
How and where do I apply? 13 Payment 14 Must I pay anything for medical care? 14 How are payments made? 14 Can I still qualify if I have health insurance? 14 What happens if I receive a medical settlement from 14
How and where do I apply? 13 Payment 14 Must I pay anything for medical care? 14 How are payments made? 14 Can I still qualify if I have health insurance? 14 What happens if I receive a medical settlement from another source? 15
How and where do I apply? 13 Payment 14 Must I pay anything for medical care? 14 How are payments made? 14 Can I still qualify if I have health insurance? 14 What happens if I receive a medical settlement from another source? 15 What if I am a Medicare beneficiary? 15 Rights and Responsibilities 16 What are my rights as an applicant or client? 16
How and where do I apply? 13 Payment 14 Must I pay anything for medical care? 14 How are payments made? 14 Can I still qualify if I have health insurance? 14 What happens if I receive a medical settlement from another source? 15 What if I am a Medicare beneficiary? 15 Rights and Responsibilities 16

This pamphlet is designed to answer some of the most commonly asked questions concerning Medicaid for Supplemental Security Income-related people. The information may be difficult to understand. If you have any questions, please contact your county Department of Human Services office.

What is Medicaid?

Medicaid is an assistance program that pays for certain medical and health care costs for people who qualify. The Medicaid program is funded by the federal and state government, and is managed by the Iowa Department of Human Services (DHS).

The Medicaid program is sometimes referred to as the <u>Title 19</u> program. This should not be confused with <u>Medicare</u>. Medicare is an insurance program handled by the Social Security Administration.

What is Non-MAGI-related Medicaid?

"Non-MAGI-related Medicaid" is a program for most people who qualify for Supplemental Security Income (SSI) and for people who are aged, blind, or disabled and who meet SSI requirements except for excess income or resources.

Do I qualify?

You may get full Medicaid coverage if you meet any of the following requirements:

- You get SSI or a payment through the State Supplementary Assistance (SSA) program.
- You live in a medical facility (hospital or nursing facility) and you meet all the requirements for the SSI program except for income or resources.
- You have been eligible for SSI or SSA and Social Security at one time but no longer qualify for SSI or SSA because of a Social Security cost of living increase.
- You would be eligible for SSI or SSA but you do not wish to receive cash assistance.
- You are disabled and working and your income or resources are more than SSI limits (see page 4 for more details). In this case you may qualify for the Medicaid for Employed People with Disabilities (MEPD) program. For more information, please see the pamphlet "Medicaid for Employed People with Disabilities," which is available from your DHS worker.
- Your income or resources are more than SSI limits (page 4 has more details). In this case you may qualify for the non-MAGIrelated <u>Medically Needy Program</u>. For more information, please see the pamphlet "*Medicaid for the Medically Need*y," which is also available from your DHS worker.
- You are receiving waiver services through one of the state's Home- and Community-Based Services (HCBS) waiver programs.

You may qualify for limited Medicaid services if you meet the following requirements:

- You have Medicare Part A and you meet the eligibility requirements for the <u>Qualified Medicare Beneficiary</u> program (QMB). For more information, see the pamphlet "Medicaid for the Qualified Medicare Beneficiary," which is available from your DHS worker.
- You have Medicare Part A and you meet the eligibility requirements for the <u>Specified Low Income Medicare</u> <u>Beneficiary</u> (SLMB) program, or <u>Expanded Specified Low</u> <u>Income Medicare Beneficiary</u> (E-SLMB).
- You qualify to purchase Medicare Part A and you do not qualify for Medicaid under any other coverage group and you meet all other eligibility requirements for the <u>Qualified Disabled and</u> <u>Working Persons</u> program (QDWP). For more information, contact your DHS worker.

What are the program requirements?

The non-MAGI-related Medicaid program requires that you be aged, blind, or disabled; that your income and resources be within certain limits; and that you meet other factors of eligibility.

- Aged. You are age 65 or older, or
- Blind. Regardless of age, your vision is 20/200 or less or your visual field is limited to 20 degrees or less with the best corrective eyeglasses. If your visual impairment is not severe enough for you to be considered blind, you may still qualify as a disabled person, or
- **Disabled**. You have a physical or mental impairment which prevents you from doing work for at least 12 months or which is expected to result in death. A child under 18 can also qualify as being disabled.

The Medicaid for Employed People with Disabilities program (MEPD) requires that you meet the medical listing of impairments used for SSI disability except that your earned income will not be a consideration.

 Income. You must report all income including interest, lump sums, earned income, and unearned income (such as Social Security, veteran's benefits or annuities). It is required that your income not exceed certain limits, depending on the program for which you qualify.

SSI and SSA Programs

These programs have different income limits depending on your needs and circumstances. See your DHS worker to determine your income limits.

If you stay in a medical facility, your total monthly income (without any deductions) cannot be more than three times the basic SSI benefit for one person.

QMB Program. Your income must be within 100 percent of the federal poverty level. Please see the pamphlet "*Medicaid for the Qualified Medicare Beneficiary*" for more information.

SLMB Program. Your countable income is over 100 percent of the federal poverty level but less than 120 percent of the federal poverty level.

E-SLMB Program. Your countable income is equal to or greater than 120 percent of the federal poverty level but less than 135 percent of the federal poverty level.

QDWP Program. Your countable income does not exceed 200 percent of the federal poverty level.

Medically Needy Program

The Medically Needy program may not pay all of your medical expenses, which means you may be responsible to pay some of your medical expenses. The amount for which you may be responsible is based on your total countable income. Please see the pamphlet "*Medicaid for the Medically Needy*" for more information.

Medicaid for Employed People with Disabilities

You must be disabled, have earned income from work and your net family income must be less than 250 percent of the federal poverty level for your family size. You will be required to pay a monthly premium when your monthly gross income is above 150 percent of the federal poverty level. For more information, please see the pamphlet "*Medicaid for Employed People with Disabilities*," which is available from your DHS worker.

 Resources. Resources are things you own, such as your home, contracts for the sale of real estate, personal property, trusts, life estates, stocks and bonds, savings and checking accounts, or cash.

In determining the countable value of your resources, take into account the following guidelines because not all resources are counted:

- Your home is not counted if you live in it, or you are away and plan to return to it or if your spouse or a dependent relative is living in it.
- Life insurance policies are not counted if the total combined face value of all policies owned by you is \$1,500 or less. If the total face value is more than \$1,500, only the cash value is counted.
- The value of one vehicle is not counted if it is used by the household for transportation to a job or to a medical provider (at least four times per year), or if it is modified for use by a handicapped person. If your vehicle is not one of the types just listed, only the portion of the current market value that exceeds \$4,500 may be counted as a resource.
- Personal and household goods or burial funds may not count, depending on their value.
- There are different guidelines on the countable value of your resources if one spouse of a married couple enters a medical facility. Please see the pamphlet "*Protection of Your Income and Resources*" for more information.

For adults, it is required that the countable value of your resources not exceed certain limits, depending on the program for which you qualify. If your resources do exceed the limits, you cannot receive benefits from that program.

Children may still be able to get Medicaid under certain programs even if the value of your resources is over the limit.

What are the resource limits?

SSI and SSA Programs. \$2,000 for an individual and \$3,000 for a married couple living together.

QMB, SLMB, and E-SLMB. The person's resources do not exceed the maximum amount of resources that a person may have to obtain the full low income subsidy for Medicare Part D. Please see the pamphlet "*Medicaid for the Qualified Medicare Beneficiary*" for more information about QMB. For more information about SLMB and E-SLMB, please contact your worker.

QDWP Program. \$4,000 for an individual and \$6,000 for a couple. For more information about QDWP, please contact your worker.

Medically Needy Program. \$10,000 for one or more persons. Please see "*Medicaid for the Medically Needy*" for more information.

Medicaid for Employed People with Disabilities. Your countable resources must be \$12,000 or less for an individual and \$13,000 or less for a couple. There are additional resources that are exempt from consideration for eligibility for MEPD. For more information, please see the pamphlet "Medicaid for Employed People with Disabilities," which is available from your DHS worker.

Each of these program limits are considered differently if one spouse enters a medical facility and the other remains at home. Please see the pamphlet "*Protection of Your Income and Resources*," for more information. Ask your DHS worker for a copy.

Transfer of Assets

You may not qualify for Medicaid payment for certain services if you transferred (gave away or sold) resources or income for <u>less than fair market value</u>. This depends on when the resources or income were transferred and to whom they were given or sold.

Listed below are some guidelines on the transfer of assets at less than fair market value. They may be difficult to understand. More information is available from your DHS worker.

Assets transferred on or after July 1, 1993, and within 60 months of an application, or while a person is receiving Medicaid, may result in a claim being filed against the person who received the asset for either the amount of Medicaid paid on the recipient's behalf or the uncompensated value of the transferred asset, whichever is less, whether eligibility is affected or not.

Nursing facility payments can be granted in cases of hardship when a transfer of resources has been made to someone other than the spouse after July 1, 1990. Medicaid can pay for nursing facility services in cases of hardship. Undue hardship exists only when all of the following conditions are met:

- Application of the transfer of asset penalty would deprive the individual of food, clothing, shelter, medical care, or other necessities of life, such that the individual's health or life would be endangered.
- The person who transferred the resource or the person's spouse has exhausted all means including legal remedies and consultation with an attorney to recover the resource.
- The person's remaining available resources (after the attribution for the community spouse) are less than the monthly statewide average cost of nursing facility services to a private pay resident, counting the value of all resources except for:
 - The home if occupied by a dependent relative or if a licensed physician verifies that the person is expected to return home.
 - Household goods.
 - A vehicle required by the client for transportation.
 - Funds for burial of \$4,000 or less.

Note: If you applied for Medicaid and a penalty period was imposed because you gave away or sold resources and did not receive the fair market value for the resources, the penalty period continues for the time period established. However, if the resources are returned to you, the penalty period may be revised.

• Other factors of eligibility

- **Citizenship**. You must be a citizen, an alien lawfully admitted for permanent residency, or otherwise permanently residing in the United States under color of law. ("Color of law" means that the U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services have given permission for your residency and do not plan to deport you.)
- **Residency**. Generally, you are a resident of Iowa if you are voluntarily living in the state for other than a temporary purpose.

Considerations in determining your residency are based on your capability to express intent to temporarily or permanently live in Iowa, your age (if you are under 21), your employment status, and whether you live in a medical facility.

If you have been placed in a facility in Iowa by another state, you are considered to be a resident of the state that placed you in the facility.

- Other benefits. As a person applying for Medicaid, you must apply for and be receiving, all other benefits for which you are eligible. Other benefits include Social Security, Iowa Public Employees Retirement System (IPERS), railroad retirement, veteran's benefits, pensions from private employment, etc.
- Social Security number. You must provide your own Social Security number. If you do not have a number, you will be required to show proof you have applied for one.
- Cooperation in establishing paternity and obtaining support. You can choose whether or not you want the Child Support Recovery Unit to help you get child support or health insurance from the absent parent.

What requirements are there for medical facility residents?

To qualify for Medicaid as a medical facility resident (staying in a hospital or nursing facility), you must meet the following requirements:

- **Income limit**. Your income cannot be more than three times the SSI benefit for one person.
- Length of stay. A 30-consecutive-day stay in a medical or nursing facility is required if your income is more than the basic SSI benefit rate. Payment to the nursing facility can be approved for care you receive during the month that you entered the facility as well as for ongoing care.
- Need for care. When you live in a nursing facility, you must be approved by the Iowa Medicaid Enterprise (IME) as needing the care provided by the nursing facility. Inform the nursing facility when you apply for Medicaid, and they will obtain approval for your care. Without this approval, Medicaid payments will not be made to the facility.
- **Client participation**. This refers to the amount of your income you must pay to the medical facility at the beginning of each month for your care while you live in the facility.

Medicaid pays the difference between your monthly "client participation" and the Medicaid-approved cost of care in the facility. Certain deductions from your income are allowed in determining client participation.

Please see the pamphlet "*Medicaid Information for People in Nursing Homes and Other Facilities*," for more information (available from your DHS worker).

• Other. Please see the pamphlet mentioned above for a detailed and complete list of requirements for residents of medical facilities. Also see the pamphlet "*Protection of Your Income and Resources*," which explains how Medicaid can help when a spouse enters a medical facility.

How do I get a medical card?

When you qualify for Medicaid, you will receive a "*Medical Assistance Eligibility Card*."

Iowa Medicaid Eligibility Card

All members receive a Medical Assistance Eligibility Card.

- Keep your card until you get a new one.
- Always carry your card with you and don't let anyone else use it.
- Show your card to the provider every time you get care.
- If you lose your Medicaid card, call Iowa Medicaid Member Services.
- If you go off of Iowa Medicaid and come back on, a new card will not be issued.
- Please contact Member Services to request a new Medicaid card.

Managed Care Organization (MCO) Card

In addition to the Iowa Medicaid card, IA Health Link Managed Care program members will receive a card from the MCO whom they are enrolled with. IA Health Link members will need to present both cards when receiving services.

Can I choose the medical provider?

Iowa Medicaid members will get their health care from providers in their coverage plan. If the provider does not participate in Iowa Medicaid, you will have to pay for the services.

When will coverage begin?

Medicaid coverage may begin on the first day of the month that the county DHS office receives your application (except for the QMB program, which begins the first day of the month after DHS determines that you qualify).

Certain populations may qualify for Medicaid during the three months prior to the application month if they have unpaid medical bills. Be sure to discuss this with your DHS worker when you apply.

Examples

Mr. A applies for Medicaid on April 25. On May 12, the county DHS office determines Mr. A qualifies for Medicaid. Coverage begins as of April.

Mr. B applies for the QMB Medicaid program on June 20. On July 5, DHS determines Mr. B qualifies for Medicaid under the QMB program. Coverage begins on August 1.

What medical services are covered?

The different types of services available through Medicaid are covered only if they are <u>medically necessary</u>. A detailed list and explanation of the services covered and not covered by Medicaid is included in the pamphlet "*Your Guide to Medicaid*."

If you are eligible only for QMB, Medicaid pays only for the Medicare premiums, deductibles, and co-insurance for services covered by Medicare.

If you are eligible only for SLMB or E-SLMB, Medicaid pays only for the Medicare Part B premium.

How and where do I apply?

When starting the application process, you should contact the Social Security office or the county DHS office to determine if your income is within SSI limits.

If you are living at home and your income and resources are within SSI limits:

- Apply for SSI at the district Social Security office. You are also applying for Medicaid at the same time.
- The Social Security office will determine if you qualify to receive monthly cash assistance under the SSI program. If you qualify, you may also be eligible for Medicaid.
- Your county DHS office will request additional information from you for the Medicaid program once your application for the SSI program is approved.
- You should apply at your county DHS office if you want Medicaid coverage only and do not wish to receive SSI cash assistance or believe you may not qualify for SSI.

If you are living at home and your income or resources exceed **SSI limits**: Apply at the DHS office in the county where you live.

If you are living in a medical facility: Apply at the DHS office in the county where the medical facility is located.

Must I pay anything for medical care?

You may be required to share some of the costs of the services you receive. This sharing is called copayment. People staying in nursing facilities who are approved for Medicaid to pay for nursing facility care do not have to pay copayments. If copayment applies to the service you are receiving, the medical provider will tell you the amount you must pay. See the pamphlet "*Your Guide to Medicaid*" for further information on copayment.

Except for copayment, all Medicaid providers are required to accept payments from Medicaid as payment in full for services covered by Medicaid. **No additional costs should be charged to you**. If you get a bill, other than for copayment, or if you are refused medical care because another bill was not paid by Medicaid, you should call the medical provider or the central DHS office (free) at **1-800-338-8366**. This number is only for problems you have with a bill.

How are payments made?

DHS sends a check to the medical provider for services you receive that are covered by Medicaid. When necessary medical care is not available in your community, reimbursement for your transportation cost to the nearest provider is made if you check with your DHS worker before traveling. You must file a claim with the county DHS office to receive reimbursement.

Can I still qualify if I have health insurance?

The fact that you have other insurance coverage does not affect your eligibility for Medicaid. However, it is your responsibility to keep your DHS worker at the county DHS office informed of any health insurance coverage that you currently have. You should also contact the county office <u>within 10 days</u> if you change insurance companies, or if there is a change in what your insurance policy covers. This includes any health insurance carried by you or by someone other than yourself that provides coverage for you.

In fact, if you do have health insurance available to you and you are not on Medicare, the Department may pay the premium under the Health Insurance Premium Payment (HIPP) program. See the pamphlet "*The Health Insurance Premium Payment (HIPP) Program for Iowa Medicaid Recipients*," for more information and an application for this program.

What happens if I receive a medical settlement from another source?

It is also your responsibility to advise the county DHS office of any accident or injury that you may suffer, if there is a possibility that you may receive a settlement or cash payment because of the accident or injury.

By law, DHS does not need your consent to recover medical payments made on your behalf. DHS may make a claim against any person or company that may be responsible for paying the costs of your medical expenses. If you or your attorney request it, DHS will provide documents or claim forms describing the medical services which have been paid for you. These documents may also be provided to a third party when necessary to establish the extent of DHS's claim.

If you receive a direct payment from another source for medical expenses that were already billed to Medicaid, you must refund this payment to DHS. Failure to do so, or failure to cooperate in establishing another person's or company's liability for your expenses, can result in the termination of your Medicaid coverage.

What if I am a Medicare beneficiary?

If you have Medicare coverage and are also eligible for Medicaid, Medicare deductibles and coinsurance will be paid through the Medicaid program. In most cases, DHS also pays the Social Security Administration directly for your Medicare and Part B premiums.

What are my rights as an applicant or client?

Appeals and Hearings. If you are dissatisfied with the actions or lack of action by DHS, you should discuss the matter with your DHS worker. If a satisfactory agreement cannot be reached, you have a right to file an appeal and ask for a hearing. If one is allowed, the hearing will be an informal meeting with an Administrative Law Judge from the Department of Inspections and Appeals in which you can present your complaint. All the facts will be reviewed to see if the decision was correct or should be changed.

You may file an appeal (ask for a hearing) in person, by telephone or in writing. To file an appeal in writing do one of the following:

- Complete an appeal electronically at <u>https://dhssecure.dhs.state.ia.us/forms/</u>, or
- Write a letter telling us why you think a decision is wrong, or
- Fill out an Appeal and Request for Hearing form. You can get this form at your county DHS office.

Send or take your appeal to:

Department of Human Services Appeals Section 5th Fl 1305 E Walnut St Des Moines IA 50319-0114

Filing an appeal within 30 days of the date on the *Notice of Decision* that you feel is incorrect can protect your right to a hearing. **Discussions with your worker or other DHS staff do not extend this time limit**.

Filing an appeal before the effective date indicated on your *Notice of Decision* that you feel is incorrect can allow your benefits, including Medicaid, to continue until your appeal is heard or decided. Any benefits you get while your appeal is being decided may have to be paid back if the Department's action is correct.

- Present your *Medical Assistance Eligibility Card* each time you request service from any medical provider.
- Inform your county DHS office of changes in your address, income, resources or household size (marriages, births, and deaths), and any other changes that may affect your eligibility or the amount of benefits (such as the income and resources of persons who are considered part of your Medicaid eligibility).

Please report any changes within 10 days if you are currently receiving benefits and within 5 days if you have applied and there has not been a decision on your application. Reporting promptly helps to make sure that the benefits you receive are correct.

- Inform your medical providers of any medical resources that you have (Medicare, insurance, damage suits, etc.).
- Notify your county DHS office within 10 days of any changes in your medical resources or health care coverage. You may be required to provide information and proof of any medical resources available to you.
- File a claim or application for any income or medical resource that may be available to you. If required, you must also cooperate in the processing of any such claim or application.
- Refund to DHS any money that you receive from a person or company to pay medical expenses which would otherwise be paid by Medicaid.
- Failure to comply with your responsibilities can result in denial or cancellation of Medicaid. It may also result in the establishment of overpayments for which you will be responsible or possible prosecution for fraud.

The lowa Department of Human Services (DHS) complies with applicable federal civil rights laws to provide equal treatment in employment and provision of services to applicants, employees, and clients and does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, age, disability or sex. DHS:

- Provides free aids and services to people with disabilities to communicate effectively with us, such as:
 - Qualified sign language interpreters.
 - Written information in other formats (large print, audio, accessible electronic formats, and other formats).
- Provides free language services to people whose primary language is not English, such as:
 - Qualified interpreters.
 - Information written in other languages.

If you need these services, contact Iowa Medicaid Member Services at 1-800-338-8366.

If you believe that DHS has failed to provide these services or discriminated in another way on the basis of race, color, national origin, age, disability or sex, you can file a grievance with DHS, Office of Human Resources, by emailing <u>contactdhs@dhs.state.ia.us</u> or in writing to: DHS Office of Human Resources, Hoover State Office Bldg, 1st FI, 1305 E Walnut St, Des Moines, IA 50319-0114

You can file a grievance in person or by mail or email. If you need help filing a grievance, the DHS Office of Human Resources is available to help you.

You can also file a civil rights complaint with the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Office for Civil Rights, electronically through the Office for Civil Rights Complaint Portal, available at <u>https://ocrportal.hhs.gov/ocr/portal/lobby.jsf</u>, or by mail or phone at: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, 200 Independence Ave SW, Room 509F, HHH Bldg, Washington, DC 20201, 1-800-368-1019, 800-537-7697 (TDD)

Complaint forms are available at <u>http://www.hhs.gov/ocr/office/file/index.html</u>.

ATENCIÓN: si habla español, tiene a su disposición servicios gratuitos de asistencia lingüística. Llame al **1-800-338-8366 (TTY: 1-800-735-2942)**.

注意:如果您使用繁體中文,您可以免費獲得語言援助服務。請致電□ 1-800-338-8366 (TTY: 1-800-735-2942).

CHÚ Ý: Nếu bạn nói Tiếng Việt, có các dịch vụ hỗ trợ ngôn ngữ miễn phí dành cho bạn. Gọi số 1-800-338-8366 (TTY: 1-800-735-2942).

OBAVJEŠTENJE: Ako govorite srpsko-hrvatski, usluge jezičke pomoći dostupne su vam besplatno. Nazovite **1-800-338-8366** (TTY - Telefon za osobe sa oštećenim govorom ili sluhom: **1-800-735-2942**).

ACHTUNG: Wenn Sie Deutsch sprechen, stehen Ihnen kostenlos sprachliche Hilfsdienstleistungen zur Verfügung. Rufnummer: 1-800-338-8366 (TTY: 1-800-735-2942).

فان خدمات المساعدة اللغوىة تعتوافر لك بالمجان. انتصل برقم 8366-338-800 (رقم المن فرمات المساعدة اللغة المعاتف ا هاتف الصم والبائم :1492-735-1900) . ملحوظة: إذا لخنت تعتحدت اذلخر اللغة،

ໂປດຊາບ: ຖ້າວ່າ ທ່ານເວົ້າພາສາ ລາວ, ການບໍລິການຊ່ວຍເຫຼືອດ້ານພາສາ, ໂດຍບໍ່ເສັງຄ່າ, ແມ່ນມີພ້ອມໃຫ້ທ່ານ. ໂທຣ 1-800-338-8366 (TTY: 1-800-735-2942).

주의: 한국어를 사용하시는 경우, 언어 지원 서비스를 무료로 이용하실 수 있습니다. 1-800-338-8366 (TTY: 1-800-735-2942) 전화해 주십시오.

ध्यान द: य द आप हदी बोलते ह तो आपके िलए मुफ्त म भाषा सहायता सेवाएं

उपलब्ध ह। 1-800-338-8366 (TTY: 1-800-735-2942) पर कॉल कर ।

ATTENTION: Si vous parlez français, des services d'aide linguistique vous sont proposés gratuitement. Appelez le 1-800-338-8366 (ATS: 1-800-735-2942).

Wann du [Deitsch (Pennsylvania German / Dutch)] schwetzscht, kannscht du mitaus Koschte ebber gricke, ass dihr helft mit die englisch Schprooch. Ruf selli Nummer uff: Call 1-800-338-8366 (TTY: 1-800-735-2942).

เรียน: ถ้าคุณพูดภาษาไทยคุณสามารถใช้บริการช่วยเหลือทางภาษาได้ฟรี โทร 1-800-338-8366 (TTY: 1-800-735-2942).

PAUNAWA: Kung nagsasalita ka ng Tagalog, maaari kang gumamit ng mga serbisyo ng tulong sa wika nang walang bayad. Tumawag sa 1-800-338-8366 (TTY: 1-800-735-2942).

ບວິລາວິບວິລະ– ຈະອຳກາດັນ ການີ້ ກຳລິສະພີ, ຈະມະຄຳ ກຳລິສາດາຳພາຍານນາ ດາດນາວກາວິການ ຊຶ່ດນະການ ແລະ ກຳ 1-800-338-8366 (TTY: 1-800-735-2942).

ВНИМАНИЕ: Если вы говорите на русском языке, то вам доступны бесплатные услуги перевода. Звоните **1-800-338-8366** (телетайп: **1-800-735-2942**).

